BOGOR GOALS PROGRESS REPORT GUIDELINES

I. PURPOSE

The Bogor Goals Progress Report Guidelines will be implemented for reviewing 21 economies’ progress towards achieving free and open trade and investment by 2020.

II. RATIONALE FOR A REVISED MECHANISM 

In Montana, in May 2011, Senior Officials (SOM) endorsed recommendations prepared by the Committee of Trade and Investment (CTI) for a more robust mechanism to track progress towards the Bogor Goals. Background information can be found at: 2011/SOM2/021anx2. 

III. BOGOR GOALS PROGRESS REPORT GUIDELINES

(a) Format of the Individual Action Plan (IAP)  

· Economies will report on the IAP Template (annex 1) new trade and investment policies and procedures and the improvements planned for the remaining areas to fill the gap in moving closer to achieving the Bogor Goals. If policy settings remain the same from one reporting period to the next, then there is no need to collect and repeat the same information. 2010 economies
 might give emphasis to those areas where shortcomings were highlighted in the Leaders' Statement on 2010 Bogor Goals Assessment.  

· The areas to be reported will be based on the Osaka Action Agenda plus those added afterwards: 

· Tariffs

· Non-tariff measures 

· Services 

· Investment

· Standards and conformance 

· Customs procedures

· Intellectual property 

· Competition policy

· Government procurement

· Deregulation/regulatory review

· World Trade Organization (WTO) obligations including rules of origin

· Dispute mediation

· Mobility of business people

· Official websites that gather economies´ information

· Transparency

· Regional Trade Agreements / Free Trade Agreements (RTAs/FTAs)

· Other voluntary reporting areas 

· Economies will describe, in brief points only, significant new developments under each chapter heading. The information provided should be succinct but sufficient for the reader to understand the outline of the measure being described. Refer to the IAP reporting templates revised in 2004 together with 2000 APEC IAP Format Guidelines as guidance for reporting on each issue area.  

· Wherever possible entries should include a reference point (website, document, contact address, etc.) where further information can be obtained.

(b) Reporting from the Policy Support Unit  

· The Policy Support Unit (PSU) will prepare a short one- to two-page report with key highlights on members’ main achievements and remaining areas for improvement in the year of review. This would include information setting out the prevailing situation of trade and investment liberalization and facilitation of the economies, and use, where possible, indicators to facilitate the assessment. Economies would have the opportunity to examine the PSU’s report ahead of the SOM discussion, preferably with a few months’ leeway to ensure that each economy has sufficient time to review the report, make comments and highlight any factual errors, if any. Senior Officials will also have an opportunity to respond to the PSU’s report at their meeting, and also pose questions to each other, before it is finalized and made public as an independent report by PSU.

· In response to ABAC’s recommendation, the PSU will also prepare a “Dashboard” to complement the brief report abovementioned. 

(c) IAP Peer Review Process 

Regular Senior Officials’ review 

· Economies will be reviewed by Senior Officials in: 2012, 2014, and 2018.  In each previous year, the CTI will table for SOM’s endorsement the schedule to prepare the IAP submission and PSU report, taking into account the calendar for that APEC’s year.

· For 2012, economies will submit their templates by SOM1, February 2012. Senior Officials will discuss the brief reports prepared by the PSU by SOM2, June/July 2012.

Second-term review 

· Economies will be assessed in 2016, as a second term review. 

· 2010 economies might give emphasis to those areas where shortcomings were highlighted in the Leaders' Statement on 2010 Bogor Goals Assessment. 

· The host economy in 2016 supported by the APEC Secretariat and the PSU will lead the assessment based on the information provided in the IAP Template, and also information setting out the prevailing situation of trade and investment liberalization and facilitation of the economies, and use, where possible, indicators to facilitate the assessment. 

· The APEC Secretariat and the PSU could complement this assessment by using, where appropriate, data from the World Trade Organization, International Monetary Fund and other respectable sources, considering that data could be available for tariffs, but similar information for non-tariff measures, services and investment might be less visible.

Final Assessment 

· In 2020, economies will undertake a final assessment toward the achievement of the Bogor Goals. 

· The template prepared by Japan in 2010 could be used as the basis for the evaluation, to be consistent as much as possible with the 2010 assessment. 

· The host economy in 2020 supported by the APEC Secretariat, the PSU will lead the assessment based on the individual IAP reports and information provided in the abovementioned templates. 

· The APEC Secretariat and the PSU could complement this assessment by using, where appropriate, data from the World Trade Organization or other international organizations.

(d) Public Access to the IAP Information 

· The APEC Secretariat and the PSU would make the APEC-IAP website more user-friendly as well as improve its functionality, among other measures: i) the IAP Template might be divided by chapters, so users can download only the section of their interest; and ii) to include a point of contact in the APEC Secretariat to attend requests for further information. Additionally, visits to the website could be tracked. 

· The IAP Template submitted by economies and the report prepared by the PSU will be made publicly available on the internet. 

	Individual Action Plan Update for [Economy] for 2018

	
Highlights of recent policy developments which indicate how [economy] is progressing towards the Bogor Goals and key challenges it faces in its efforts to meet the Goals. 

	




	IAP Chapter (and Sub-Chapter and Section Heading, if any) 
	Improvements made since  [2016] IAP 
	Further Improvements Planned 

	Tariffs
	Tariffs

Peru adopted the Harmonized System 2017 on January 1st, 2017. The current Peruvian Customs Tariff has 7,790 lines (Chapter 1 to 97) and its structure has three tariff levels: 0%, 6% and 11%.

In 2018:

(1) MFN applied tariff (simple average): 2.2% 

(2) MFN Applied Tariff Agriculture (Simple Average): 2.9% 

(3) MFN Applied Tariff Non- Agriculture (Simple Average): 2.1%

(4) Number of product lines with zero-tariff: 70.4% of the total tariff schedule.

(5) Zero tariff imports represented 74% of total imports in 2017.
(6) The number of product lines with MNF tariff rates greater than or equal to 11% was 8.8% of total tariff schedule.

(7) Non-Ad Valorem Product Lines represented 0.6% of total tariff schedule.
(8) Non-Ad Valorem Imports represented 3.9% of total imports in 2017.
Transparency in tariff regime: Tariff Policy Guidelines approved by Ministerial Resolution Number 005-2006-EF/15 and published on January 15th 2006. These Guidelines can be found at the webpage of the Ministry of Economy and Finance. 
	

	Website for further information:  
	· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism (www.mincetur.gob.pe)
· Minsitry of Economy and Finance  
(www.mef.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Angela GUERRA (aguerra@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Non-Tariff Measures
Non-tariff measures include but are not restricted to quantitative import/export restrictions/prohibitions, import/export levies, minimum import prices, discretionary import/export licensing, voluntary export restraints and export subsidies
	·  Import licensing: 0

· Quantitative import restrictions / prohibitions:  used road motor vehicles for cargo and passenger transportation; used clothing and footwear “for commercial purposes”; used engines, components and spare parts for road vehicles; used goods, machinery or equipment that use radioactive sources. 

· Import levies: 

(i) The Value Added Tax (Impuesto General a las Ventas, IGV) of 16% and Municipal Tax of 2% are applied to 7,355 tariff lines. 

(ii) The Value Added Tax (Impuesto General a las Ventas, IGV) of 16% is applied to 7,148 tariff lines.

(iii) Additional excise tax (Impuesto Selectivo al Consumo, ISC) is applied to the import of certain goods such as fuels, vehicles, spirits, beer, aerated beverages, tobacco, and cigarettes.

· Export subsidies: 0

· Peru does not apply other non-tariff measures.
	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	· National Superintendency of Customs and Tax Administration (www.sunat.gob.pe/operatividadaduanera/index.html) 
· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Investment (www.mincetur.gob.pe)
· Ministry of Economy and Finance
· (www.mef.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details: 
	Ms. Angela GUERRA (aguerra@mincetur.gob.pe)

Mr. Ernesto GUEVARA (eguevara@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Services
	Financial Services

Stock Market Regulation

In September 2015, the Regulation of the Operations in the Peruvian Stock Market was modified (Resolution N° 021-2015-SMV/01). This new Regulation allows the use of Algorithmic Trading in the negotiation of stocks. This kind of Trading is allowed and used by many investors in different stock markets.

In addition, last December 2017, the Regulation of the Operations in the Peruvian Stock Market was modified by the Law N° 30708. This new disposition allows the possibility of corporate merge between stock exchanges and Institutions for Clearing and Settlement of Securities. 

 

Investment funds

In September 2017, the Superintendence of the Securities Market (SMV) amend the regulation of the Management Companies and Investments Funds (Resolution N° 031-2017-SMV). This amendment includes the possibility to reduce the amount of the guarantee that supports the invested capital. 

Moreover, the Law 30708 allows the Management Companies to invest in operations with futures, options and other derivatives, acquisitions of credit portfolios and commodities.   

Mutual Funds

The Law N° 30708 amends the disposition that required a minimum of 50 participants to start the activities of the mutual funds. Now, within 12 months, the fund must have at least 50 participants, except if the Superintendence of Securities Market (SMV) provides otherwise due to the nature of the fund.

In addition, it regulates the possibility that the distribution of quotas can be made by the Management Company or third parties contracted.  

Asset Securitization

In April 2017, the SMV amended the Regulation of Asset Securitization Procedures and the Regulation of Investment Funds (Resolution N° 016-2017-SMV). This new disposition modifies the requirements that trusts must have in Trusts of Securitization in Real Estate Income (FIBRAS) and Investment Funds of Real Estate (FIRBIS). For instance, trusts and investment fund must pay 95% of its gross profit and not the accounting profits. This regulation must be read with the regulations issued by the National Superintendence of Customs and Tax Administration (SUNAT), which generate tax benefits for FIBRAS and FIRBI.  

Intermediation Agents 

In June 2017, the SMV amended the Regulation of Brokering Agents (Resolution N° 024-2017-SMV). Now, the authorization of the Representatives has an automatic approval if the agent submits all the documentation required to the SMV. 

ETF

In 2015, the SMV enacted the Exchange Trade Fund (ETF) Regulation (Resolution N° 005-2015-SMV/01). This Regulation allows the cross listing of foreign ETF in the Lima Stock Exchange. In addition, it gives investors more investment options.

Municipal Savings and Loan Institution Law:

In July 2017, the Law N° 30607, was enacted to modify and strengthen the Municipal Savings and Loan Institution Law. This Law allows the Municipal Savings and Loan Institution to participate in the execution of public investment projects with regional and local impact, which is known as the Tax for Works Act.

Real Estate Capitalization:

In September 2015, the Legislative Decree 1196 (modifying the General Banking, Insurance Law N° 26702) was enacted to promote the Real Estate Capitalization Contract as an alternative mechanism to mortgage financing for access to housing, as well as grant fiscal incentives for the development of these operations.

Factoring: 

In February 2015, the Law N° 30308 was enacted (modifying the General Banking, Insurance Law N° 26702). This Law looks to promote micro, small and medium sized enterprises financing. 

This Law established factoring companies that would be included in the scope of the General Law and therefore supervised by the Superintendence of Banking, Insurance and Pension Fund Administrators (SBS), and factoring companies that would not be included in the scope of the General Law and therefore not supervised by the SBS.

The determination of whether they are within the scope of the General Law depends on the volume of operations and/or the risk that these companies may represent for the stability of the financial system.

Leasing: 

In July 2015, the Legislative Decree 1177 was enacted with the objective to boost the real estate market. This law allows the users to purchase a house through a leasing contract.

Before this Legislative Decree, houses could be acquired through leasing. This Legislative Decree creates a registry for housing leases, that allows to accelerate the eviction in case of non-compliance and also gives tax benefits.

General Modifications to the General Banking, Insurance Law N°26702:

a. Legislative Decree 1313, incorporates article 143-A which allows the Peruvian Tax authority (SUNAT) to access to information on deposits operations of companies in the financial system with their clients regarding balances and/or accumulated amounts, averages or higher amounts of a certain period, including information that identifies customers, in the case of compliance of what was agreed in international treaties or Decisions of the Commission of the Andean Community.

b. Legislative Decree 1321, incorporates the Thirty Three Final and Supplementary Provision, with the objective to foster greater competition in the Peruvian financial system through the establishment of new companies in the financial system that must be accompanied by the maintenance of adequate levels of solvency of the participants, which establishes exceptions to article 53 y 55 of the General Law.
Modifications to the System for the Prevention of Money Laundering and Financing of Terrorism:

a. Law N° 30437 (May 2016), modifies the Law Intelligence Financial Unit N° 27693, allowing the Intelligence Financial Unit to apply administrative measures to block the access to funds to any person that is in exposure to the System for the Prevention of Money Laundering and Financing of Terrorism.

b. Decree Legislative N° 1249 (November 2016), dictates measures to strengthen the prevention, detection and punishment of money laundering and terrorism.

Modifications to the Private Pensions System (PPS):

Law 30425, 30428, allows to:

a. The affiliate as of 65 years of age can choose between receiving the corresponding pension in any withdrawal modality, or request their Pension Fund Administrator (AFP) delivery up to 95.5% of the total fund available in the affiliates Individual Capitalization Account (CIC) in the instalments it deems necessary. The affiliate who exercises this option will not be entitled to any state guarantee benefit. The provisions of the previous paragraph extend to members who benefit from the special early retirement scheme.

b. Exceptionally, the PPS affiliate may use 25% of the accumulated fund in their Individual Capitalization Account as collateral for the down payment of a mortgage loan for the purchase of a first home at any time of their affiliation.

c. The early retirement and return of contributions for terminal illness or diagnosis of cancer also takes place.

Telecommunication Services 

International roaming:

Peru is working on international roaming issues with Colombia and Bolivia under the framework of Bilateral Agreements, endorsed by Leaders. 

In the case of Colombia, the last agreement considers to continue efforts to reduce roaming charges to the users and starts the assessment of possible regulatory measures to promote reduction of wholesale prices; while in the case of Bolivia, the commitment is to take actions to improve the information provided to users and reduce international roaming rates between the two countries.

Net neutrality:

In December 2016, the Regulation on Net Neutrality (Resolution Nº 165-2016-CD/OSIPTEL) was enacted with the objective to provide predictability.

Passive Infrastructure:

The Rule that Regulates the Registration of Passive Infrastructure Providers for Public Mobile Services was approved by Supreme Decree N° 024-2014-MTC, issued in December, 2014. The law aims to regulate the registration procedure of Passive Infrastructure Providers for Public Mobile Services.

Number Portability:

A modification of the Regulation for Fixed and Mobile Service Number Portability was approved by Resolution N° 151-2015-CD/OSIPTEL, issued in December, 2015. The Regulation aims to strengthen number portability as a way to foster competition in the market of public mobile services and fixed telephony services, for the benefit of users.

Telecommunications Infrastructure:

In April 2015, the “Regulation of the Law N° 29022 for Strengthening Infrastructure Expansion in Telecommunications Law” was enacted. This Regulation sets an automatic approval procedure for the authorization to install telecommunications infrastructure.

In June 2016, the National Optical Fiber Network (RDNFO) was inaugurated. This is a project that began with the enactment of the Broadband Law in 2012. This network goes through 180 cities and represents more than 13,000 km laying of optical fiber.

In the same way, the deployment of 21 regional networks projects that will provide capillarity of the optical fiber network to the cities that has been programmed. To date, twelve (12) projects of regional networks have been tendered. The totality of the regional networks will represent 35,000 km of additional optical fiber to the RDNFO.

Competition in the public mobile services market: 

The Regulation of the Law that establishes measures to strengthen competition in the public mobile services market (Law N° 30083) was approved by Supreme Decree N° 004-2015-MTC, issued in August, 2015. The Regulation seeks to promote the participation of new mobile operators in the Peruvian market through Mobile Virtual Network Operators.


	Financial Services: 

Brokerage firm Regulation

In 2015, the Regulation of Broker-Dealers (Resolution N° 034-2015-SMV/01) was enacted. This Regulation establishes, inter alia, broader possibilities to broker clients to invest in foreign capital markets and more flexible requirements to broker-dealers when they offer their services to foreign clients. This Regulation will be applied since January 01, 2017.



	Website for further information:  
	· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism 
(www.mincetur.gob.pe) 

· Supervisory Organization of Private Investment in Telecommunications 

(www.osiptel.gob.pe) 

· Superintendency of Banking, Insurance, and Private Pension Fund Administrators
(www.sbs.gob.pe)
· Superintendendecy of Securities Market
(www.smv.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Karina TEJADA (ktejada@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Investment


	Consistency with APEC Non Binding Investment Principles.
Between 2016 and 2017, Peru developed several progresses in the context of APEC Non-Binding Investment principles, 

mainly in areas of Business facilitation, international investment agreements and policies to promote investments.
Business Facilitation

The Multiannual Plan for the 2014-2018 competitiveness agenda is led by the National Competitiveness Council of the Ministry of Economy and Finance – CNC (by its Spanish acronym), the CNC is in charge of proposing, coordinating and implementing the Plans to improve competitiveness in Peru, including a component of Business facilitation. In order to move forward towards the objectives of facilitating business, the CNC coordinates with several public and private agencies to detect barriers, boost the implementation of reforms and the implementation process improvements.

https://www.cnc.gob.pe/agenda-competitividad/2014-2018/texto-agenda
In the context of the Peru’ s adherence to OECD declaration on International Investments and Multinational Enterprises since 2008 and the implementation in 2010,  of the OECD National Contact Point ( NCP), located in  the Investment Promotion Agency of Peru- PROINVERSION, it considers issues oriented to support the  APEC investor behaviour principle.

In September 2016, the NCP of Peru and the OECD organized in Lima the Workshop : Promoting Good Practices in Responsible Business Conduct in Mining.

https://www.investinperu.pe/modulos/JER/PlantillaStandard.aspx?are=0&prf=0&jer=8006&sec=1 

Number of BITs and FTAs/RTAs

BITS signed in 2016 :  1  Brazil (2016.04.26)

FTAs/RTAs Signed in 2016  :  1

Trans Pacific Partnership  (2016.02.04)

http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/ 
Investment Policies

With the purpose of reactivating and encourage private investment in infrastructure In November of 2016, the Peruvian Government has issued the Legislative Decree 1251, which amended some issues of the  framework law for the promotion of investments through Public Private Partnerships (PPP).

In the context of Reform of the public-private investment process. The Investment Promotion Agency of Peru (ProInversión) will be strengthened, providing it with better technical capacities and greater responsibilities in the design of projects to improve the quality of Public Private Partnerships.

www.proinversion.gob.pe 
	In order to meet the business facilitation objectives, CNC is working and coordinating some high priority activities aimed at simplifying procedures to facilitate private investment.

Taking into account that Peru aspires to join OECD in the future, Peru is working on implementing OECD recommendations to reduce the gaps in infrastructure, the quality of education, the productivity of the workforce, investment in science, technology and innovation, among others.

Peru’ s OECD NCP activities to promote corporate responsibility will contributing  to the consolidation of the investment climate in Peru.

To conclude BITs negotiations with: INDIA

To conclude negotiations on investments through  FTAs/RTA  negotiations with: COMPREHENSIVE AND PROGRESSIVE 

AGREEMENT FOR TRANS-PACIFIC PARTNERSHIP (CPTPP) (Concluded January 23rd 2018).

FTAs/RTAs in negotiations: EL SALVADOR, TURKEY, AUSTRALIA, DOHA PROGRAM, Trade in Services Agreement-TISA.

To continue the investment promotion program in infrastructure to strengthen connectivity and contribute to improve the investment environment.



	Website for further information:  
	
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Vanessa RIVAS PLATA (vrivas@mincetur.gob.pe) 
Ms. Nancy Bojanich (NBOJANICH@proinversion.gob.pe)  
	

	Standards and Conformance

	By Law Nº 30224 in July 2014, the National Institute of Quality – INACAL was created. From July 2014 to June 2015 a transference process was carried out.

INACAL is a governing entity and technical high authority of Quality National System, in charge of Standardization, Accreditation and Metrology activities. 

Directorate of Standardization

In 2015, was approved 766 Peruvian Technical Standards, 41% of them correspond to the adoption of international standards: ISO, IEC and Codex Alimentarius.

All Peruvian standards are submitted to a public discussion process.
INACAL has also developed a website which contains Peruvian Catalogue of Standards. This website is:

https://www.inacal.gob.pe/principal/categoria/ntp
INACAL has been participating in 52 International Technical Committees according to the following detail:

· International Organization for Standardization (ISO): in 2015 INACAL participated in 43 TC, 35 as P-member and 8 as O-member

· International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC): INACAL is participating in the Affiliate Country Program in 4 technical committees.

· FAO/WHO Codex Alimentarius Commission: Peru is represented by the National Directorate of Environmental Health (DIGESA) at the Ministry of Health (MINSA). Further, INACAL has the technical coordination of 5 national technical committees. 

Directorate of Accreditation

With the Creation Law of INACAL N° 3022 (National Institute of Quality), the National Accreditation Service turn in to Accreditation Directorate remaining theirs areas such as accreditation of laboratories, accreditation of inspection bodies, product certification, personnel certification and certification of management systems.

INACAL has 81 laboratories, 40 inspection bodies and 07 certification bodies accredited.

Metrology Directorate

The National Institute of Quality, through its Metrology Directorate (DM), represents Peru in the Metrology field at the international level. DM governs Metrology in scientific, industrial and legal fields nationwide.

In addition DM conserves the National Measurement Standards; it diffuses the Peruvian Legal System of Measurement Units and issues Metrologic Certifications with traceability to the International System of Units - SI

Peru, through DM, is member of the International Organization of Legal Metrology (OIML), Inter-American Metrology System (SIM) and it is an associated state of the General Conference on Weights and Measures (CIPM).

Up to now, the DM has international recognition for its Calibration and Measurement Capabilities (CMCs), in Electricity (Energy and AC / DC), Density, Length, Chemical Metrology, Volume, Time and Frequency, Pressure, Mass and Temperature, Force, and Mass.  Liquid Flow and Gas Flow are in process. The Metrology Directorate of INACAL has 109 CMCs recognized by BIPM. 
The Metrology Directorate also provides calibration services for equipment and measuring instruments for calibration laboratories and industry when they are required due to the accuracy level and/or indication interval. About 7500 calibrations are done per year.

55 new calibration services were developed (including decentralized services) mainly in quantities as Length, Acoustics, Temperature, Volume, Mass and Chemistry.

The first Itinerant Metrology Laboratory in Peru was launched - CALILAB, which consists of a mobile laboratory, developed with the Peruvian ingenuity from a metal container with all the technical characteristics of a calibration laboratory that allows it to be moved to different strategic places of the country.

The Service of Metrological Assistance to Industry is an initiative of the Directorate of Metrology of INACAL to bring the benefits of Metrology to production companies and the industry in general, through technology transfer methodologies and expert consultancies, thus constituting an improvement in the quality of the country's productive sector. Five metrological assistance services were provided to the industry.

The DM offers training courses, internships, and Metrology´s Diploma, having up to now 31 graduates. 
In Legal Metrology has:

· 34 published Peruvian Metrological Standards (NMPs).

· 27 Type Approvals for Water Meters, Electrical Energy Meters and Gas Meters. 

· 60 Type Approvals through homologations 

· 18 recognized companies for performing initial verification of Water Meters, Gas Meters and Electrical Energy Meters.

· Approved National Standards in the following 11 quantities: Temperature, Pressure, Chemistry (2), Volume, Gas Flow, Liquid Flow, Time, Relative Humidity, Length and Mass.

· Approbation of “Regulation for Authorization how Metrological Verification Units – UVM”

· Development of “Verified Instruments Online Searcher” 

· 15 agreement of verification of scales attended in markets

In Chemical Metrology has: 

Several Certified Reference Materials (CRMs) for pH and electrolytic conductivity in water, metals in water, chemical oxygen demand in water, ethanol in water.


	By the end of 2018:

· Publish 03 Peruvian Metrological Standards (NMPs)

· Approve 02 National Standards (quantity: energy and illuminance)

· Development of quality procedures in Law Metrology

· 10 new agreement of verification of scales in markets

· Diffusion of the Legal System of Peru Measure Unit (SLUMP)

· Authorize “Metrological Verification Units – UVM” to perform the subsequent verification in instruments subject to metrological control

· Medical devices

· New reference materials are being developed such as high purity salts, metals and proximal in food, pH and metals in soils, metals in air and total solids suspended in water.



	Website for further information:  
	· National Institute of Quality
(www.inacal.gob.pe)

· Ministry of Foregin Trade and Investment

(www.mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Rocío Barreda (rbarreda@mincetur.gob.pe)


	

	Customs Procedures

	Regarding adoption of HS2017 nomenclature: 

The Customs Tariff came into effect since January 1st, 2017, which was approved by Supreme Decree 342-2016-EF. It incorporates the Sixth Recommendation of Amendment of the Harmonised Commodity Description and Coding System.

The Specific Procedure of Tariff Classification of Goods came into effect in 29.07.2017-DESPA-PE.00.09 (Version 4)-Approved by the National Intendency Resolution N° 17-2017-SUNAT/5F0000, which establishes the guidelines for “Advance Rulings on tariff classification” 

Regarding to customs valuation:

In July 2017 the computer solutions was implemented, allowing to carry out the electronic notification to importers and Customs agents, reasonable doubts of declared value that may arise during clearance.

Peruvian legislation allows to carry out the declared value verification of imported goods during clearance process, being possible that the Customs Administration has reasons to doubt the accuracy or veracity in application of Decision 6.1 of the WTO Customs Valuation Committee (reasonable doubt procedure)
Single Window Development

SUNAT and the Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism (MINCETUR) have been working together to achieve the interoperability between the Single Window for Foreign Trade (VUCE) and the Customs Clearance System, in order to establish the electronic validation of the documents issued through the VUCE to allow clearance of restricted goods. This interoperability has been implemented only for the import of goods.

In relation to facilitation and security of the cargo:

New Procedure for Customs Seals


As part of the best continuous processes of customs and in order to regulate and harmonize effectively the procedures related to the custody, protection and security of the cargo, the Customs Administration approved the new Specific Procedure CONTROL PE.00.08 "Customs Seals and other security measures" in order to provide the guidelines to be followed for the registration, control, use and verification of high security customs seals for the custody and protection of cargo transported in closed containers, vehicle trucks and/or tanks when its structure and conditioning allow its sealing, as well as arrange other security measures, in accordance with current customs regulations.
This procedure of customs seals facilitates the voluntary use of additional security measures to ensure the security of the container along the supply chain, as recommended by the WCO SAFE Framework of Standards.

It should be noted that this new procedure for the use of high security customs seals entered into force on January 2, 2018 and is based on the international standard ISO 17712 and the Guidelines of Chapter 6 of the General Annex of the Revised Kyoto.

Procedure of Vehicles for Tourism


Amendment of the General Procedure "Vehicles for Tourism" DESPA-PG.16 (version 3); based on the new Regulation for the entry, exit and temporary stay of vehicles of private use for tourism SUPREME DECREE Nº 076-2017-EF.
The new procedure and computer developments  accompanying the improvement, allows the beneficiary to process in advance and electronically the temporary entry/exit of his vehicle, being able to consider the benefit to rented or power of attorney cars; that the period of stay to be granted to the vehicle is homologated with the term granted to the tourist by migration authority; that Peruvians can go abroad with their vehicles in a simplified manner without the use of a customs agent, warehouse and temporary export DAM; the nationalization of the vehicle is allowed only if it complies with the quality requirements provided for in the regulations, and finally a fine is applied to regulate the extemporaneously departure of a vehicle whose time of compulsory permanence has expired, instead of applying confiscation directly.

In relation to Coordinated Border Management       

Implementation of the Integrated Control in the Santa Rosa - Chacalluta border crossing (Peru - Chile), from 16.08.2017, as a fulfillment of the framework agreement for the implementation of the Integrated Control between Peru and Chile in 2011 and the subsequent presidential commitments, the ones that involve a single stop at the border of goods, luggages, means of transport and passengers for immigration, sanitary and customs controls, compared with the usual control that necessarily involves 02 stops, one in the country of departure and the other in the country of entry. This will have a positive impact on the logistics cost of the supply chain and therefore on the formation of the consumer price and the competitiveness of the companies.
The main objective of this cooperation is to ensure that the government works effectively against the challenges posed by the the supply chain security, avoiding the overlapping of requirements and controls, streamlining procedures and working to establish international standards that ensure the circulation of goods in order to facilitate trade, as established in Pillar 3 of the WCO SAFE Framework of Standards.
New issues

First package of measures to improve the efficiency of the Peruvian Foreign Trade.

The Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism in coordination with the Customs Administration, the Ministry of Transport and Communications and the Ministry of Economy and Finance has worked in the development of 13 measures to boost and improve the efficiency of the Peruvian foreign trade and to reduce logistics costs. 

Description of the measures

Regarding Customs Procedures:

Measure 1 - Advance Clearance & Customs Brokers: The guarantee established for Customs Brokers will not consider advance clearance in its calculation, granting greater liquidity to customs agents. 

Measure 2 - Deferred clearance: From the arrival of goods at port, the customs administration will allow the numbering of the customs declaration, without waiting for the end of the discharge. 

Measure 3 - Direct Shipment (Export): Exporters with an Authorized Economic Operator (AEO) standard could go through customs control in their locals (optional). This measure applies for all their goods. 

Measure 4 - Customs brokers: Customs brokers with Authorized Economic Operator (AEO) certificate may exercise their functions in all the customs offices of the country. 

Measure 5 - International freight forwarders: The authorities will work to give more formality to the sector. 

Measure 6 – Express shipments: The customs administration will extend from 2 to 3 hours the cargo manifest submission regarding weights and packages; in addition, the customs administration will allow the electronic transmission of documents. 

Measure 7 - Easy Export: goods until US $ 7,500 could apply the easy export tool, without a customs agent and under a simplified procedure. 

Measure 8 – Penalties: the customs administration will apply subjective criteria regarding disqualification, cancellation and suspension of operators. 

Regarding Supply-Chain Connectivity:

Measure 9 - Foreign Trade and Logistics Data Observatory: MINCETUR will create an electronic platform inside the Foreign Trade Single Window (VUCE) with information on tariffs and logistics services. 
Measure 10 - Logistics Platforms: The Government will establish the regulatory framework for the implementation of logistic platforms that support foreign trade. 

Regarding Institutional Coordination:

Measure 11 - Creation of the National Committee on Trade Facilitation: A public-private forum to discuss cross-cutting issues related to trade facilitation and cargo logistics will be established by the government, according with international commitments such as the Trade Facilitation Agreement of the World Trade Organization. 

Regarding Administrative Simplification.

Please see Further Improvements Planned colum, Measure 12
Regarding Investment Promotion.

Measure 13 - Creation of a Directorate for Promote Productive Investments: An office with functions to attract foreign investment in productive development projects. 

	Regarding Administrative Simplification:

Measure 12 – Foreign Trade Single Window (VUCE):  MINCETUR will launch the VUCE 2.0 version, whit new support modules for foreign trade and introducing the application of risk management in the operations of others foreign trade regulatory entities.
In relation to facilitation and security of the cargo:

The implementation of new (IT) and similar technologies is being evaluated as part of the FAST program (Customs Facilitation, Simplification and Transparency), which will help ensure greater cargo security, reduce risk and obtain benefits in terms of facilitation, through Reduced controls and access to simplified procedures.

In relation to Coordinated Border Management:

Implementation of Integrated Control in the Desaguadero CEBAF, the only head on the Peruvian side, for the 1st quarter of 2018.

Measures 1, 2, 3, 4, and 11 were approved, the others measures will be approved in a progressive manner during 2018.

Second package of measures;

MINCETUR and other Borders Authorities are working in 20 measures to improve the efficiency of foreign trade.

	Website for further information:  
	· National Superintendency of Customs and Tax Administration
(www.sunat.gob.pe)
· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism

(www.mincetur.gob.pe)
· Ministry of Transport and Communications

(www.mtc.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mrs. Gloria RAMIREZ (gramirez@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Intellectual Property Rights

	1) During 2017, the Directorate of Inventions and New Technologies (DIN) of the National Institute for Defense of Competition and Protection of Intellectual Property (INDECOPI) granted 638 patents and 266 industrial designs, surpassing the registrations granted in 2016, in 32% and 59%, respectively. It must be noted that 143 of the registrations granted are from national inventors, 39% more than last year, which demonstrates a significant advance in the promotion of the patent system in our country. 

2) Since July 2017, the Electronic Gazette of Industrial Property (Electronic Gazette) started working, publishing 1,060 patent and industrial design applications in a faster way, and saving approximately S/. 530,000 soles to the applicants.

3) INDECOPI will receive applications from national inventors by electronic means through the website ePCT administrated by WIPO, which will allow the submission and management of international applications within the framework of the Patent Cooperation Treaty (PCT), as well as the exchange of information by means of an electronic platform between the Peruvian receiving office and the users in a fastest and safest way.

4) In the National Invention Contest of 2017, considered as one of the main events regarding the recognition of the inventive activity in Peru since 1996, the number of applicants increased, since it received a total of 313 projects, surpassing the 302 inventions submitted in the previous edition. Also, during 2017, the Annual Patent Convention, the Services Providers Fair and the Annual Recognition of the Commercialization of the Patented Invention, were held.

5) During 2017, “Patente Rápida” Program, which its objective is to provide free advice to potential patent applicants, managed to facilitate the submission of 156 patent applications. During 2016, 126 applications were submitted due to this program, therefore, there has been an improvement of 24%.

6) Also, during 2017, “Patenta Universidad” Program, which is directed to universities, superior academic centers or Peruvian research centers, that regularly develop activities, processes or research and technological innovation projects, received 173 research projects. Furthermore, during the same year, the DIN increased to 15 the number of institutions subscribed to this program, and trained 500 academics and researchers about the patent system.

7) The fourth program for the Patent Prosecution Highway (PPH) was implemented with the Japanese Patent Office, which has allow the exchange of information between offices, avoid the duplication of efforts and accelerate the granting of patents, reducing the average time for granting patents; moreover, it has placed INDECOPI among the most important patent offices in the world, allowing to provide a better and faster service to the applicants. In addition to the PPH signed with the Japanese Patent Office, INDECOPI has also signed PPHs with Spain, the Pacific Alliance countries (Colombia, Mexico and Chile) and with the countries of the System of Cooperation PROSUR.

8) On September 2017, INDECOPI officially integrated its database of more than 4,500 industrial designs to Designview, an online and free of charge consultation tool administrated by the European Union Intellectual Property Office (EUIPO), which provides information about industrial designs of 62 offices worldwide, having in its database approximately 13.2 million industrial designs.

9) INDECOPI in coordination with WIPO started the establishment in Peru of Technology and Innovation Support Centers (CATI), which purpose is to provide technological information about patents and other topics related to the intellectual property system, having received 29 positive reactions from universities and research centers from different regions, as well as from the Chamber of Commerce of Lima.

10) To date, as a result of the registry in situ of collective knowledge of indigenous people, 4,893 titles were granted and registered either in the National Confidential Registry or in the National Public Registry. 

11) The project proposed by Peru: “Best Practices on Patent Commercialization for Independent Inventors” was approved by APEC for funding. This project was developed by the DIN. The purpose of the project is to improve the capacities of independent inventors of the APEC region (amongst them Peru), to manage and transfer patented technologies, on the basis of successful experiences of independent inventors of the region, which are related to the commercial exploitation of the patent system.

12) Peru held two international events, one in cooperation with the WIPO about the PCT, and the other about plant varieties in cooperation with UPOV. Furthermore, Peru held various international events with different institutions (Court of Justice of the Andean Community, WIPO, IBEPI).

13) Within the framework of the Ad-Hoc Andean Committee of Industrial Property (CAAPI), discussions continued regarding the modification of Decision 391 that establishes the Common Regime of Access to Genetic Resources. 

14) INDECOPI established a program to promote collective marks and certificate marks. This included seminars to create and disseminate the benefits of collective marks, the establishment of pilot products and working together with the producers and public institutions in order to protect the collective marks and generate certificate marks. The collective marks that have been protected include products such as quinoa, fruits and chocolates.

15) In order to contribute with the reactivation of the economy in the regions affected by the climate phenomenon “El Niño”, Peru issued the Decree Supreme N° 086-2017-PCM, published on August 28th, 2017, by virtue of which the producers that apply for the registration of collective marks were exonerated from the payment of fees. In addition to that, the approved measure simplifies the administrative procedure of application for the registration of a collective mark. In that sense, the formal examination is reduced from 15 to 5 working days, and the term to issue a final resolution from 180 to 90 working days.

16) To reduce the time of the procedure to register a trademark, the Distinctive Signs Directorate (DSD) of INDECOPI has implemented a system called “Fast Track”. It has allowed to reduce the time of the procedure from 150 working days to 45 on average.

17) To ease registers of trademarks, the DSD has implemented a free of charge advisory service focus on entrepreneurs. It includes: filling applications, phonetic research, figurative research and so on. 

18) By virtue of an agreement celebrated with the Court of Justice of the Andean Community, an internship program has been implemented with the purpose of promoting the exchange of knowledge with INDECOPI’s officials.

19) On August 2016, it was recognize the tenth Peruvian Appellation of Origin “Cacao Amazonas Perú” (“Cocoa from Amazonas – Peru”).

20) Since October 10, 2017, the DSD officially integrated its trademarks and other distinctive signs database (dated from 2000 onwards) to TMview, which is a centralized, free of charge and online query tool that facilitates information about registered trademarks or trademarks applications, having approximately 47,6 millions of trademarks, from all main offices. 

21) In 2015, INDECOPI signed a MoU on Technical Cooperation in Industrial Property with the EUIPO, which objective is to generate an exchange of information and cooperation for the promotion, dissemination and protection of Industrial Property.

22) In 2017, INDECOPI signed agreements with the National Industrial Property Institute of the Republic of Chile (INAPI), the National Agrarian University of the Selva, the National Radio and Television Institute of Peru (IRTP), among other national and international institutions, with the purpose of promoting industrial property. Furthermore, INDECOPI signed an MoU with the Patent and Trademark Office in the United States (UPSTO) - MOU N ° 17143006.
23) During 2017, the DSD carried out 260 inspections in different productive and commercialization areas of Pisco, in order to verify the proper use of the apellation of origin PISCO.

24) In 2017, the Distinctive Signs Directorate granted the character of well known in degree of renown to the apellation of origin PISCO.

25) During 2017, the free application PeruaNIZAdo was implemented, which facilitates the classification of goods and services when filling an application.

26) During 2017, within the framework of the strategic plan that seeks to promote the use, registration and proper management of collective marks, the DSD has provided training to the inmates of penitentiary establishments.

27) As part of the policy aimed at preventing and eradicating violence against women, the DSD has provided the Ministry of Women and Vulnerable Populations with technical and specialized assistance, which includes the search and analysis of registration background for the application and possible registration of the certification mark EMPRESA SEGURA (“Safe Enterprise”).

28) During 2017, an important increase was produced regarding the submission of applications of registry of works, especially applications submitted via online. This important increase is mainly due to the platform specialized on copyright, which is destined to offer counseling and advice in copyright related topics for authors and other people involved in the different creative industries.

29) On December 2017, INDECOPI hosted an international workshop: “How to live from music”, which was sponsored by WIPO. It had positive reactions among artists and musicians, to whom were exposed the different tools they can count on to further develop their careers. 

30) Also, on December 2017, the Copyright Directorate participated in the “Design Award in crafts: Artisan Innovation of Artists”. 

31) During 2017, and within the context of the fight against piracy, the Copyright Directorate has actively participated on the Commission of Fight against customs offenses and piracy, chaired by the Ministry of Production. In that sense, INDECOPI has been participating in: 

· preventive campaigns, such as “Yo decido yo respeto” (“I decide I respect”), which is aimed to raise awareness to students from public schools of the damages from piracy; “Compra legal y original” (“Buy legal and original”) which is a platform aimed to promote the purchase of goods and services of legal origin; also, involvement in the elaboration of educational materials on copyright for schools, in collaboration with the Ministry of Education.  
· deterrent activities, such as the participation in workshops against the piracy of broadcasting, software, TV PAGA, editorials and audiovisuals.

32) Also, during 2017, the private sector recognized the inspection actions taken by INDECOPI for cable operator businesses.

33) Within the framework of administrative simplification, a new regulation of copyright registry was issued, among other regulations.
	1) Implementation in Peru of Technology and Innovation Support Centers in a nationwide level.
2) Subscription of PPHs with the European Patent Office (EPO) and the United States Patent and Trademark Office (UPSTO).

3) Relaunch of the National Inventors Contest, incorporating also industrial designs.

4) Peru’s participation in the Inventor Assistance Program (IAP) administrated by WIPO.

5) Launch of the programs “Patenta Empresa”, “Patenta Universidad” and “Patenta Persona Natural”.

6) Strengthen the Anti-Biopiracy National Commission.

7) Launch of the database BIO–CTPI referred to genetic resources and traditional knowledge that are on the public domain.

8) Launch of collective marks prioritized by the Commission for the Promotion of Peru for export and tourism (PROMPERÚ) /Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism (MINCETUR).
9)  The DSD will grant collective marks accompanied by the code QR (Quick Response Code). The collective marks will take advantage of the opportunities offer by this type of code, using it both on products and advertising campaigns. The information that these QR codes provides includes: product description, storage forms, production period, nutritional information, history and special qualities, members of the collective mark, commercial contact, images, etc., offering relevant information of the products that distinguishes the collective mark in a faster way.

10) Programs of collective and certification marks from VRAEM (valley of the Apurímac, Ene and Mantaro rivers).
11) It must be noted that discussion on extending the validity of the Decree Supreme N° 086-2017-PCM is still undergoing. This Decree Supreme was issued to contribute with the reactivation of the economy on the regions affected by the climate phenomenon “El Niño”.
12) In order to reduce the terms of the procedure for registration of a trademark, it is expected that a service of electronic mailbox address will be implemented, which along with the Electronic Gazette, will allow to resolve trademark applications without opposition in 40 working days.

13) Regarding technical specialized assistance, a Virtual Consultancy Platform will be implemented, which aim is to reach to those entrepreneurs that cannot approach to the physical platforms that INDECOPI currently has.

14) Likewise, an online renovation service for trademarks will be implemented, by means of which trademark owners will be able to renew their trademarks in approximately 10 minutes.

15) The DSD will keep working in the automatization of their procedures through an electronic system of files management.

16) During 2017, the application for the declaration of the appellation of origin “Orégano de Tacna” was submitted, which is currently in process.

17) Strengthen the inspections for the appellation of origin PISCO.

18) Launch of the “Pisco Guide” which purpose is to strengthen the knowledge of the rules related to the production and commercialization of Pisco.

19) Carrying out campaigns about payment of copyrights, and against plagiarism.

20) Launch of guidelines on copyright for specific sectors.

21) Participation on main cultural events or fairs.

22) Organization of contests for specific creative industries.

23) Carrying out workshops for artists and videogamers.



	Website for further information:  
	· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism

(www.mincetur.gob.pe)
· National Institute for the Defense of Free Competition and the Protection of Intellectual Property
(www.indecopi.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mrs. Angela VIZCARRA(avizcarra@mincetur.gob.pe) 
	

	Competition Policy

	INDECOPI is in charge of implementing competition policy in all sectors, except for the public telecommunications services market, for which the Supervisory Authority for Private Investment in Telecommunications (OSIPTEL) is responsible.

INDECOPI

1.Legislative Decree 1034, which approves the Law on Suppression of anticompetitive behavior, is modified through Legislative Decree 1205 ( September 2015)

       Among the main modifications are:

· Extended power to punish "facilitators"
The Act allows Indecopi to initiate procedures against companies that made up a cartel in addition with the amendment. Indecopi can also initiate procedures against those whose participation in its planning or execution was decisive. For example, Indecopi could fine the company that guarantees the exchange of information and, simultaneously, those who have been monitoring compliance with cartel agreements to punish deviant behavior. This provision is also applicable to public officials when, exceeding theirs powers, unfairly promote or facilitate cartels.
· To strenghten coordination between Indecopi and the Courts
When Indecopi requires a judicial warrant - for example, to obtain copies of personal correspondence during inspections without warning or to lift of secrecy of communications – this authorization will be granted by the administrative judge in charge of review the decision of Indecopi, instead of the criminal judge. There are some reasons about specialization and efficiency. Indeed, the administrative judge in charge of reviewing Indecopi’s decisions is more able to balance people’s rights and the aim of the defense of competition law. 

 
· The commitment to a cease
 The mechanism on commitments to a cease has been modified in order to establish a true system of early termination of the procedure. With this amendment, this mechanism is no longer limited to lesser anticompetitive behaviors as it was in the original Act (Legislative Decree 1034). However, each applicant should provide measures to ensure restoration of competitive process and to revert the negative effects of the infringement. Therefore, these measures will impact positively on consumers. 

 
· Leniency Program
The article about the exoneration penalty has been modified. In this regard, according to other countries (Brazil, Mexico, Chile, United States, European Union, etc.), leniency programs have shown substantial efficacy by allowing the competition authorities to detect and collect evidence of the existence of cartels with effective collaboration of offenders in exchange for granting of benefits in the fines. In Peru, however, the lack of clarity in regulation has limited the success of this mechanism. With this amendment, several Leniency Program’s features are properly defined, such as the scope of the program, its requirements, stages and deadlines, and the powers of the offices in Indecopi to manage this program. 
 
· Fines for obstruction
The experience of the Technical Secretariat and the Commission for the Defense of Free Competition has shown that economic agents believe that fines for noncompliance with reporting requirements or obstruction of the research activities are not sufficiently dissuasive. In this regard, it is preferable and necessary that economic agents comply with the law instead of breaking it. So, with this amendment the fines have increased significantly (up to US$ 1,166,666, approximately) for unjustified noncompliance with reporting requirements and obstructing the procedures of the Technical Secretariat and the Commission for the Defense of Free Competition, that were before regulated by Article 5 of the Legislative Decree 807.  
· Class action
The Act allows Indecopi to impose fines but with the amendment, Indecopi can also establish corrective measures to repair the direct and immediate effects resulting from the infringement. This amendment aims to contribute to a competition system whose effects can be reflected on those affected, who would have had to wait for the final resolution of the judicial process to demand compensation for damages (there have not been suits filed to repair consumers nowadays). The amendment gives Indecopi the possibility to sue on behalf of consumers for the reparation of damages caused by a cartel.  
· Advocacies
Advocacies are recommendations issued by Indecopi to public authorities and its aim is to eliminate barriers or obstacles to the competitive development or to introduce regulation to promote economic efficiency. In recent years, these efforts have taken on special importance among the functions of the Technical Secretariat of the Defense of Free Competition Commission. Therefore, according to OECD’s recommendations, the amendment establishes that the entities, whom the recommendations are addressed, must respond to Indecopi within a period of ninety (90) labor days. 

2.  Guide for Market Research (2016). The goal of this guidance is to help stakeholders – i.e. businesses, trade associations, consumers, consumer bodies and public entities (including ministries, independent regulators and all other public bodies) -understand what market studies are, what they intend to achieve, how they are performed and what their outcomes can be. This document also explains how stakeholders can contribute to market studies.

For more information: https://www.indecopi.gob.pe/documents/51771/197143/Mercado/a481bf82-3b85-4024-8945-9e3e05240b6c 
3.  “Leniency program guidelines”, published in August 2017 by the Resolution Nº 059-2017-CLC-INDECOPI, issued by the Technical Secretariat of the Commission for the Defense of Free Competition of Indecopi, under Section 26 of the Peruvian Competition Act. This Guidelines establishes terms, rules, conditions and restrictions, so the Leniency Program can achieve predictable, transparent and with effective rules. The objective of these Guidelines is to maximize the incentives for the economic agents involved in cartels to apply for benefits under the Leniency Program, strengthening the fight against cartels.

For more information: https://www.indecopi.gob.pe/documents/51771/1981946/Leniency+Program+Guidelines+%E2%80%93+Peru+Indecopi/f2f8506a-90d0-3657-56b2-b3e6799ec274 

	1. Increased applications to the Leniency Program.

2.  Development of a Guide of Government Procurement and Competition, to guide the organizers and participants of public selection processes, to identify conducts against the rules of free competition and design more competitive processes.

3. Start or termination of disciplinary proceedings in markets linked to the basic family basket or that involves a large number of consumers

4. Make use of the new tools and institutions introduced by Legislative Decree 1205 (for example, the commitment to cease).



	Website for further information:  
	· National Institute for the Defense of Free Competition and the Protection of Intellectual Property

(http://www.indecopi.gob.pe)
· Supervisory Organization of Private Investment in Telecommunications 

(http://www.osiptel.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mr. John CUSIPUMA (jcusipuma@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Government Procurement

	Over the last year, several modifications to the Peruvian procurement legal framework took place. Changes to the Law 30225 and to Supreme Decree 350-2015-EF were enacted and entered into force during the first quarter of year 2017, by the approval of Legislative Decree 1341 and Supreme Decree 056-2017-EF. These modifications were related to both, provisions contained in the procurement law and in the ruling. In general terms, the aim of this changes was mainly to further improve and simplify Peru’s procurement rules and procedures in order to achieve greater value for money, to avoid and manage conflict of interest, and to deter bribery. 

In this context, this new reform establishes norms to maximise value for propel productive money of invested public resources and promote results-based management in the area of public procurement, ensuring good management in terms of purchasing by public officials, taking into consideration efficiency, transparency and controlling criteria, which represent the basic principles of the public procurement system. 

The specific objectives of the new law are: simplification of the public procurement processes; implementation of “Perú Compras”, the central purchasing body (responsible henceforth of the procuring modalities such as reverse auction, framework agreements and central purchases, assuming some functions that in the past were undertaken exclusively by the Government Procurement Supervising Agency (OSCE)); standardisation of public procurement processes (through the development of new tools by Perú Compras); increased competition in public procurement processes; and the inclusion of the conditions and provisions included in the country’s international trade agreements.

Amendments to the new law also introduced several changes aimed at strengthening the transparency, integrity, efficiency and accountability of the public procurement system in Peru. These changes respond to specific issues identified by the Ministry of Economy and Finance (MEF) and the Government Procurement Supervising Agency (OSCE), with regard to (among others): public procurement programming and planning; market analysis; the definition of requirements; and contract management, including arbitration. Many of the changes introduced are aligned with international best practices. 

The recent modifications made to Public Procurement Law reflect the nation’s commitment to preserving a high level of integrity in the public procurement system. The principles governing procurement that are stated in article 2 of the law now include a principle of integrity: “the conduct of the participants at any stage of the contracting process is guided by honesty and veracity, avoiding any improper practice, which, if it occurs, must be communicated to the competent authorities in a direct and timely manner.”

In Peru, the provisions regulating conflict of interest of public officials are diverse and embedded in different laws and regulations, while the National Code of Ethics Act accompanied by the National Commission against Bribery (CAN) manuals defines what constitutes a conflict of interest through general features of the phenomenon. Furthermore, the new Public Procurement Law and its regulation identified the situations where conflict of interest poses a threat to the integrity of the public procurement processes, and accordingly established prohibitions.

To that effect, the last modifications that were made to article 11 of the procurement law included some additional prohibitions. In particular, the new literal (h) based on the old literal (f) of the said article, limited family members only up to the second degree of consanguinity that formerly was the fourth degree and the new literal, based on old literal (g), puts on the participation of the legal persons with participation superior to the 30% of the capital, which previously was set at 5%. In addition to lowering the participation limit, the aforementioned new prohibitions included new literals (m), (n) and (o) that state the inability to participate of natural or legal persons or their subsidiaries (through the participation of their legal representatives or other related persons) who have committed or have confessed their commission in crimes such as embezzlement or trafficking of influences, whether in the country or abroad. Indeed, the provisions listed in the laws and regulations contribute to managing conflict of interest situations in public procurement in Peru by prohibiting the relevant conflict of interest situations. 

Additionally, Peru has elaborated ethical principles for all public officials, and provides guidelines on their application. Furthermore, our legal system has identified high-risk positions and situations of conflict of interest that are prohibited from participating in public procurement.

It is relevant to mention that during the last years OSCE has signed integrity pacts with chambers of commerce from different departments of the country as instruments of transparency, integrity and efficiency in the area of contracting. These pacts generate specific commitments based on the requirement for ethical behaviour in the private sector. In addition, modifications to Public Procurement Law added an obligation to include an anti-corruption clause in all contracts in article 32.3. Article 40.5 in particular states that contracts signed without the anti-corruption clause are nullified. 

The new public procurement regulation also included mechanisms to increase the levels of transparency to avoid bad practices, such as: i) National Registry of Arbitrators; ii) accreditation of arbitral institutions; iii) obligation of arbitral institutions and centres that administer dispute boards to send information about the arbitral procedure to OSCE; iv) publication of arbitral decisions on SEACE; and v) creation of an arbitral record, which is an electronic database about arbitrators working in public procurement.  In this regard, modifications to the procurement law also introduced the Dispute Resolution Board (Junta de Resolución de Disputas, JRD), which deals with conflicts related to the implementation of major works. The board has the pruopse to solve conflicts in an easy and flexible way in order to finish works on time and to reduce arbitration and thus the overall cost of the public procurement process. 

Public authorities in Peru have been working with the United Nations Environment Programme on implementing sustainable public procurements, and are in the process of executing the project “Stimulating the offer and the demand of sustainable products through public procurement and eco-labelling” under the leadership of the MEF and OSCE. The main objective of the project is to prepare and support implementation of a preliminary plan of sustainable public procurement (SPP), train public officials in SPP, and execute pilots in public procurement with sustainability criteria for the prioritised goods and services. 

In relation to international trade agreements, the FTA between Honduras and Peru entered into force on May 2017, containing a Government Procurement Chapter, with provisions equivalents to previous FTAs celebrated by the country, to Revised GPA and to APEC Model Measures on Public Procurement.


	· Peru is working towards assessing periodically the results of the procurement process and develop indicators to measure performance, effectiveness and savings of the public procurement system. 

· Peru is considering developing ways to make public procurement more environmentally sustainable by including environmental criteria in tendering procedures.
· Peru is working towards further developing tools to monitor implementation of the control and risk management systems. 

· The e‑procurement system is planned to be rendered more transactional in order to increase efficiency and strengthen the integrity of the public procurement system.

· Peru is planning developing key performance indicators to measure the impact of conciliation and dispute resolution boards. 

· Peru is working in making the arbitration system more effective. 

	Website for further information:  
	· Supervisory Body of Public Contracts

(www.osce.gob.pe)
· Electronic Public Contracting System
(www.seace.gob.pe)
· Ministry of Economy and Finance

(www.mef.gob.pe)

	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Patricia SEMINARIO (pseminario@osce.gob.pe)
Ms. Carla FLORES  (cflores@osce.gob.pe)
Mr. Christian CHOCANO (cchocano@osce.gob.pe)
Mr. Mijail VIZCARRA (lvizcarra@mef.gob.pe)
Mr. Jose Luis CANO (jcano@mincetur.gob.pe)

	

	Deregulation/Regulatory Review

	Peru has a new regulation, since 2017 in order to implement the application of the regulatory quality analysis.

In this sense, the entities of the Executive Power are in charge

to perform the Regulatory Quality Analysis of all the normative provisions of general scope that establish administrative procedures, including the normative provisions that regulate procedures created in laws or standards with the status of law.

Through the Regulatory Quality Analysis, we analyze different principles such as cost - benefit, need, effectiveness, proportionality, among others, as established in the Regulation of this Legislative Decree.

This Law also establishes the creation of a Multisectoral Regulatory Quality Commission in charge of evaluate the Regulatory Quality Analysis elaborated by the Executive Power.

The Supreme Decree 075-2017-PCM was established in July 2017 in order to create the Commission mentioned above and to regulate the application of Regulatory Quality Analysis.


	Peru has the purpose of applying this type of ex ante evaluation to all regulations issued by the Executive Power, as part of its objectives related to regulatory improvement in a short timeframe.

	Website for further information:  
	· Ministry of Economy and Finance

(www.mef.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Rocío BARREDA (rbarreda@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Implementation of WTO Obligations/ROOs


	Regarding WTO Obligations:

During the last two years, Peru has continued to actively participate in the WTO councils, committees, and working groups responsible for the implementation and administration of the WTO Multilateral Agreements. Additionally, Peru has firmly engaged in the ongoing multilateral negotiations.

In July 2016, Peru became the 88th Member to ratify the WTO Trade Facilitation Agreement (TFA). Furthermore, Peru organized several events that sought to ensure the correct implementation of TFA provisions: (i) the APEC Workshop regarding “Best Practices on Critical Issues in the Asia-Pacific Region for the Implementation of WTO Trade Facilitation Agreement”; (ii) a national workshop with WTO officials; and (iii) five regional workshops within Peru.

In September 2016, Peru ratified the Amendment of the TRIPS Agreement regarding public health. 

During 2017, Peru established and implemented a work plan to classify and notify the categorization of the 7 provisions exempted from our notification of measures classified under Category A (July 2014). 

Under the WTO Transparency Mechanism for Regional Trade Agreements, in 2017, Peru complied with the WTO Secretariat   request for statistical information about the Additional Protocol to the Pacific Alliance.

During 2016 and 2017, Peru confirmed that a multilateral outcome on fisheries subsidies is still a national priority. For the 11th WTO Ministerial Conference (11MC) held in Buenos Aires, Peru strongly engaged in the fisheries subsidies negotiations taking place in the WTO Negotiating Group on Rules. Peru’s Minister of Trade and Tourism attended the 11MC and urged WTO Members to continue the fisheries subsidies negotiations for achieving a comprehensive agreement by 2019.

Peru contributed to the work in Buenos Aires by sponsoring technical proposals on negotiation groups such as agriculture and services. Peru also advocated for new issues like e-commerce and MSMEs. 

On December 2017, Peru established its National Committee on Trade Facilitation pursuant article 23 of the Trade Facilitation Agreement.

Peru submitted almost all regular notifications in fulfilment of its WTO commitments. 

Regarding ROOs

Peru has implemented the WTO Agreement on Rules of Origin, including disciplines to be applied during the transition period until the harmonization work programme and the notification of administrative rulings of general application relating to rules of origin.

Preferential rules of origin are applied to imports that claim for preferential treatment under free trade agreements. 

Criteria contained in preferential rules of origin, when non originating materials are used, are based on tariff classification changes, value content requirements, technical requirements or a combination of them. 

Prescribed elements for rules of origin of the WTO Rules of Origin Agreement are incorporated into chapters on rules of origin of the Peruvian free trade agreements.

The Pacific Alliance is an agreement signed between four Latin American countries: Chile, Colombia, Mexico and Peru. In terms of Rules of Origin, it is important to mention that accumulation between the Parties is allowed. This constitutes an advantage because the final good produced within the commercial block is considered originating, enhancing the creation of Regional Value Chains, and promoting greater integration.

The non-preferential rules of origin are applied to imports that are subject to antidumping and countervailing duties in compliance with the disciplines set out in the WTO.  The current non-preferential rules of origin applied in Peru were set out clearly in accordance with the WTO. 

In order to improve the regulation related to non- preferential rules of origin, on June 18th 2011 entered into force a rule (Supreme Decree N° 005-2011-MINCETUR) that establishes the procedure to make the declaration of goods subject to trade remedies and to control their origin.


	Regarding WTO Obligations:
In 2018, Peru will complete the notification of categories B and C in accordance to the WTO Trade Facilitation Agreement obligations.

Peru will closely work with Members in the WTO Negotiating Group on Rules in order to adopt a comprehensive agreement regarding fisheries subsidies by the 12th Ministerial Conference in 2019.

In 2018, Peru plans to notify to the WTO the information required pursuant articles 1, 10 and 12 of the Trade Facilitation Agreement.

The Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism of Peru is coordinating with other public entities to determine the agency which will be responsible to issue non preferential advance rulings of origin. It is expected to conclude this task in the next months in the framework of the TFA National Committee.



	Website for further information:  
	· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Investment – Trade Agreements

(www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms. Victoria ELMORE (velmore@mincetur.gob.pe)

Ms. Jennifer OLÓRTEGUI (jolortegui@mincetur.gob.pe)
	Ms. Claudia PARRA (cparra@mincetur.gob.pe)

	Dispute Resolution

	Law Decree N° 1231 amending Law Decree N° 1071, Arbitration Act, published in the Official Gazette “El Peruano” on September 26th, 2015.

This amending law has been approved by the Executive under the authority delegated by the Congress of the Republic through Law N° 30336, in order to legislate on public security, and to strengthen the fight against crime and organized crime.

Currently, the Executive has found it necessary to make amendments and additions of rules, in order to take preventive action against crime and organized crime, without distorting the arbitration institution and the registration function, and thus curb or prevent the misuse of arbitration.


	

	Website for further information:  
	· The Peruvian Official Daily

(http://www.elperuano.com.pe/NormasElperuano/2015/09/26/1292707-1.html)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mrs. Sara ROSADIO (srosadio@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Mobility of Business People


	Immigration Law:

In January 2017, the National Superintendence of Migration issued the new Law of Immigration (Legislative Decree 1350). The new law has been designed to implement a more efficient immigration system that will strengthen the economy by promoting natural persons mobility. 

With the new Law, new migratory categories have been created, such as Research (which includes researchers and specialists in technology and innovation), Training (which includes trainees’ students, internships) and Investors (a specific category which enable investors to stay in Peru up to 365 days with a multiple entry visa).


	Professionals Movement:

In the framework of the Pacific Alliance, the Pacific Alliance members are supporting the negotiation of a mechanism that will facilitate the movement of engineers across the region by simplifying the process of professional licencing in professional associations. 


	Website for further information:  
	· National Superintendence of Migrations

(www.migraciones.gob.pe)
· Ministry of Foreign Affairs
(www.rree.gob.pe)
· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism
(www.mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Ms.  Karina TEJADA (ktejada@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Official websites that gather economies’ information

	· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism 

(www.mincetur.gob.pe) 

· Ministry of Economic and Finance
(www.mef.gob.pe) 

· National Institute for Consumer Defense and the Protection of Intellectual Property
(www.indecopi.gob.pe) 

· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism - Trade Agreements 
(www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe) 

· National Superintendence of Customs and Tax Administration
(www.sunat.gob.pe) 

· General Directorate of Migration and Naturalization
(www.digemin.gob.pe)
· Peruvian Agency for Investment Promotion (www.proinversion.gob.pe) 

·  (National Service of Agrarian Health
(www.senasa.gob.pe) 

· General Directorate of Environmental Health
(www.digesa.sld.pe)

· Ministry of Production
(www.produce.gob.pe)
· Supervising Organism of Government Procurement 
(www.osce.gob.pe)
· National Institute of Quality (http://www.inacal.gob.pe/inacal/)
	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mr. John CUSIPUMA (jcusipuma@mincetur.gob.pe)
	

	Transparency

	The national legislation regarding Transparency has not been subject to changes.
	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism - Trade Agreements
(http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/)
	

	Contact point for further details:
	Mrs. Sara ROSADIO (srosadio@mincetur.gob.pe)
	


	RTAs/FTAs  


	- Description of current   agreements
	Please use Part 1 of the RTA/FTA reporting template to provide a short description or hyperlinks to any new agreements and to report improvements to existing agreements.  

	
	Agreement #1


	Andean Community (CAN)

· Date of entry into force: October 16th, 1969

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=95&Itemid=118

	
	Agreement #2


	Pacific Alliance (PA)

Framework Agreement of the Pacific Alliance: 

· Date of entry into force: July, 20th, 2015
Additional Protocol to the Framework Agreement of the Pacific Alliance:

· Date of entry into force: May, 1th, 2016. 

First Additional Protocol of the Framework Agreement of the Pacific Alliance:

· Date of subscription: July, 3rd, 2015. Not yet in force.

Second Additional Protocol of the Framework Agreement of the Pacific Alliance:

· Date of subscription: July, 1th, 2016. Not yet in force.

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=166&Itemid=185

	
	Agreement #3


	Peru – Cuba

· Date of entry into force: March 9th, 2001

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=120&Itemid=143

	
	Agreement #4


	Peru – MERCOSUR

· Date of entry into force: January 2nd, 2006 for Argentina, Brazil and Uruguay and February 6th, 2006 for Paraguay

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=100&Itemid=123

	
	Agreement #5


	Peru – Chile

· Date of entry into force: March 1st, 2009

For more information: 

http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=70&Itemid=93

	
	Agreement #6


	Peru – Mexico

· Date of entry into force: February 1st, 2012

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=75&Itemid=98

	
	Agreement #7


	Peru – Panama

· Date of entry into force: May 1st, 2012

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=110&Itemid=133

	
	Agreement #8


	Peru – Costa Rica

· Date of entry into force: June 1st, 2013

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=115&Itemid=138

	
	Agreement #9


	Peru – Venezuela

· Date of entry into force: August 1st, 2013

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=171&Itemid=190

	
	Agreement #10


	Peru – Honduras 

· Date of entry into force: January 1th, 2017. 

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=135&Itemid=158

	
	Agreement #11


	Peru – United States

· Date of entry into force: February 1st, 2009

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=55&Itemid=78 

	
	Agreement #12


	Peru – Canada

· Date of entry into force: August 1st, 2009

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=60&Itemid=83

	
	Agreement #13


	Peru – European Free Trade Association (EFTA)

· Date of entry into force: 

Peru – Switzerland/Liechtenstein July 1st, 2011

Peru – Iceland October 1st, 2011

Peru – Norway July 1st, 2012

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=85&Itemid=108

	
	Agreement #14

	Peru – European Union

· Date of entry into force: March 1st, 2013

For more information:  http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=50&Itemid=73

	
	Agreement #15

	Trans Pacific Partnership Agreement (TPP)

· TPP aims to create a regional FTA involving Asia Pacific countries. 
· For more information:

http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=188&Itemid=207

	
	Agreement #16


	Comprehensive and Progressive Agreement for Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP)

CPTPP is a comprehensive regional trade agreement involving 11 TPP countries: Australia, Brunei Darussalam, Canada, Chile, Japan, Malaysia, Mexico, New Zealand, Peru, Singapore and Viet Nam. 

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=212&Itemid=246


	
	Agreement #17


	Peru – Australia 

It is a comprehensive FTA which includes market access in goods, services, investment as well as other trade related issues such as SMEs, Development, State Owned Enterprises, among others. 

Date of finalization of negotiations: November 10th, 2017

For more information: 

http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=202&Itemid=240


	
	Agreement #18


	Peru – India

Currently under negotiation. The FTA aims to be a comprehensive agreement including market access in goods, services, investment. First Round of Negotiations took place in August 2017. Next round of negotiation is expected in the first quarter of 2018.

For more information:
http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=201&Itemid=219


	- Agreements under negotiation


	Please provide information on agreements that are currently under negotiation eg issues being covered in the negotiation and the status of the negotiation. 

	
	Agreement #1


	Pacific Alliance – Australia 

· The Pacific Alliance is carrying out a joint negotiation with Australia, Canada, New Zealand and Singapore, in order to give them the condition of Associate States. This will result in separate trade agreements with a comprenhensive approach, covering market access for goods, services and investments, but also other issues such as movement of persons, e-commerce, SMEs, among others. Currently, the delegations of all Parties continue working. The second round of negotiations will take place in Australia, January 2018.

	
	Agreement #2


	Pacific Alliance – Canada 

· The Pacific Alliance is carrying out a joint negotiation with Australia, Canada, New Zealand and Singapore, in order to give them the condition of Associate States. This will result in separate trade agreements with a comprenhensive approach, covering market access for goods, services and investments, but also other issues such as movement of persons, e-commerce, SMEs, among others. Currently, the delegations of all Parties continue working. The second round of negotiations will take place in Australia, January 2018.

	
	Agreement #3


	Pacific Alliance – New Zealand

· The Pacific Alliance is carrying out a joint negotiation with Australia, Canada, New Zealand and Singapore, in order to give them the condition of Associate States. This will result in separate trade agreements with a comprenhensive approach, covering market access for goods, services and investments, but also other issues such as movement of persons, e-commerce, SMEs, among others. Currently, the delegations of all Parties continue working. The second round of negotiations will take place in Australia, January 2018.

	
	Agreement #4


	Pacific Alliance – Singapore 

· The Pacific Alliance is carrying out a joint negotiation with Australia, Canada, New Zealand and Singapore, in order to give them the condition of Associate States. This will result in separate trade agreements with a comprenhensive approach, covering market access for goods, services and investments, but also other issues such as movement of persons, e-commerce, SMEs, among others. Currently, the delegations of all Parties continue working. The second round of negotiations will take place in Australia, January 2018.

	
	Agreement #5


	Peru – El Salvador 

· This agreement is been negotiated since November 8th 2010. Currently, the delegations of both countries continue working to reach an agreement.

	
	Agreement #6


	Peru – Guatemala 

· Date of subscription: December 6th, 2011. Not yet in force.

For more information: http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&layout=blog&id=125&Itemid=148

	
	Agreement #7


	 Peru – Brasil 

· Date of subscription: April 29th, 2016. Not yet in force.

http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/index.php?option=com_content&view=category&id=194:inicio-brasil&layout=blog&Itemid=213

	- Future plans


	

	
	Agreement #1


	Peru – Argentina

Both countries have held initial conversations.

	
	Agreement #2


	Peru – Uruguay

Both countries have established contact points.



	
	Agreement #3


	Peru – Indonesia

Both countries have been working to define the nexts steps towards the realization of a Free Trade Agreement.




	Website for further information:  
	· Ministry of Foreign Trade and Tourism – Trade Agreements

(http://www.acuerdoscomerciales.gob.pe/) 

	Contact point for further details:
	Latin America and the Caribbean: Mr. Eduardo BRANDES (ebrandes@mincetur.gob.pe ) 

	Contact point for further details:
	Asia and Oceania: Mr. Gerardo MEZA (gmeza@mincetur.gob.pe)  

	Contact point for further details:
	North America and Europe: Ms. Sayuri BAYONA (sbayona@mincetur.gob.pe)


	Other voluntary reporting areas


	Provide brief points only
	Provide brief points only

	Website for further information:  
	
	

	Contact point for further details:
	
	


� Economies assessed in 2010, on the achievement of the Bogor Goals: APEC industrialized economies: Australia, Canada, Japan, New Zealand, and the United States, and volunteer developing economies: Chile; Hong Kong, China; Korea; Malaysia; Mexico; Peru; Singapore and Chinese Taipei. 





